Members Present:	AB	SL	KS
	CM	JPVH	MB
	DM	JS	MK
	FRR	KG	ML
	GS	KAG	SRH

Members Absent: AW JA JM

## **Opening Business**

• The IACUC Chair called the meeting to order at 2:30 pm.

### Confirmation of a Quorum and Announcement

• Quorum was confirmed by TN.

### **Other Business**

- The Chair explained that we will start to bring in researchers to tell us about their science without calling for FCR. The goal of this new initiative is to ensure the IACUC remains well informed about protocols when FCR is not warranted.
- Presentation and Discussion on new mouse model MP/GT AMEND202000509 (4283-01)

The PI and research team presented an overview of their project using a mouse model that can recapitulate similar symptoms of that in humans infected with Malaria. The committee members asked a few questions relating to their research.

2:41 PM Member Entered

## **Approval of the IACUC Meeting Minutes**

• The IACUC Chair called for the approval of the June 18, 2020 meeting minutes.

Motion was made and seconded: to approve the minutes as written.

Further Discussion: None.

<u>Vote</u>: Approved with 14 members voting in favor, 0 against and 0 abstentions.

### Attending Veterinarian's/OAW Director's Report - KS

- Adoptions: 1 ferret adopted out in the last month.
- Training program updates Revised Introduction to Rodent Surgery on-line course is now live.
- IACUC metrics- see meeting documents

- COVID impacts update: Animal care and veterinary staffing has continued to be adequate, and therefore no modifications to husbandry practices have been necessary.
- Implementation of new rodent CO<sub>2</sub> euthanasia flow rate update: DCM managed spaces are upgrading equipment and plan to have upgrade completed in August. Reminder to site visitors: when visiting lab procedural spaces (outside of DCM managed spaces) where CO<sub>2</sub> is used for euthanasia, check that they have implemented the change in fill rate of 30-70% including appropriate flow meters/flow rate and signage. If not completed, remind the lab about this change, make a note of it and that lab's OAW liaison will follow up to ensure the change gets implemented.
- Facility issues: None
- Protocol Monitoring:
  - Twenty-one total protocols. Of the protocols, 13 involve surgery, two restraint (and sx), one conscious restraint, 1 tumor modeling, 4 miscellaneous (tape skirt, infection, water quality). Seven are inactive right now. Minimal activity but for those doing procedures, the animals are very well. Pilot study involving CHIMERA in ferrets (TBI model): Still finishing data analysis and the plan is to present to the IACUC when completed. No plans to do additional experiments at this time.
- Adverse Events: None
- Non-compliance:
  - o 4290-01: Five mice were tail-tipped for genotyping at 6 weeks of age and one mouse was reported to Vet Services for a complication from that procedure. Upon investigation, it was determined that the protocol doesn't include tail tipping in mice older than 28 days of age. The group also did not use anesthesia and analgesia for tail tipping older mice as outlined in the Genotyping in Laboratory Mice policy. The OAW liaison met with the PI to discuss this incident and they reviewed both the IACUC policy on genotyping and the genotyping information currently approved on their protocol. The group has ear punch as an approved tissue collection method and they plan on using this method if mice older than 28 days of age need to be genotyped. It was recommended that all lab personnel review what genotyping methods are approved on the protocol as well as review the Genotyping in Laboratory Mice policy.

Reported to OLAW. A Letter of Counsel is recommended.

Motion was made and seconded: to send a letter of counsel.

<u>Further Discussion</u>: IACUC members asked the Attending Vet how this non-compliance could have occurred. OAW director stated that a change in personnel appears to have contributed to this error.

<u>Vote</u>: Approved with 13 members voting in favor, 0 against and 0 abstentions.

3:00 PM Member Entered

- From Arizona
  - o Facilities items: No items to report.

- Report by interim director of WaNPRC.
  - The Interim Director of the Washington National Primate Research Center (WaNPRC) gave some background and context for new IACUC members and some general updates on changes at WaNPRC. There was also an update on some recent adverse events and information about the development of a more thorough incident response and follow up plan.
  - The PC has had several transition points throughout its history and with recent financial challenges, a task force was put in place in Dec 2018 by the UW Provost to review the PC status. The PC task force completed its analysis and the Provost's office is reviewing the recommendations for future sustainability and support. The task force identified an opportunity to shift the reporting structure as well as determined it was time to rotate the PI for the P51 grant. So effective May 2020, the PC reports directly into the Office of Research for University of Washington support, the Director of the PC reports to the Vice Provost, and the PI for the P51 is the Dean of the School of Pharmacy.
  - The PC staff, which include personnel involved in daily animal care, behavioral enrichment, clinical care, research support and administrative support, are dedicated to ensuring animal welfare and to supporting important biomedical research. Unfortunately, despite everyone's efforts, adverse events happen and they are reported to the IACUC as the PC is committed to openness and transparency. What doesn't get reported is all of the things that the staff are doing right, and that every day through all sorts of weather and throughout this pandemic, the staff have shown up to work and proven their dedication to the animals and their care. The PC staff is also committed to pursuing opportunities for continual improvement.

#### Adverse events:

- At the April 16, 2020 IACUC meeting it was reported that a large male Macaque broke the locks on his cage. The NHP had to be temporarily single housed in the room until a cage could be modified so that he and his social partner could be housed together again. This has been completed and the NHP is now housed with his social partner.
- At the May 21, 2020 IACUC meeting it was reported that a female NHP had been in a trapping run and without water for more than 12 hours. There has been a thorough investigation of the incident and we do not have more information on why the animal was in the trapping run. The PC has worked with Human Resources on personnel actions regarding accountability for not verifying where the animal was before personnel departed for the day. As stated at the May 2020 IACUC meeting, water bottles are being supplied on the trapping runs to ensure that animals have access to water.
  - The committee asked if they will be informed of the actions taken by HR on the responsible personnel. The Interim Director responded that it is a matter of personnel confidentiality and will therefore not be reported to the IACUC.
- New adverse event in AZ. The facility has pens where the animals are group housed. One of the pens was repaired and all of the locks were removed from the enclosure.

After completion of the repairs, the animals were moved back into the enclosure. A lock was inadvertently left off of the feeder box and the animals were able to remove the feeder box from the front of the cage. This left a small hole at the front of the pen and one of the juvenile animals was able to crawl out and climbed the mesh of an adjacent cage. The animal crossed the facility and climbed towards the top of another enclosure where the breeder male pulled his arm through the enclosure mesh. The juvenile sustained non-life-threatening injuries to multiple digits and the left arm. The husbandry technicians were able to separate the 2 animals and called veterinary staff immediately. All injuries received prompt veterinary attention with appropriate analgesia. Due to the extent of the injuries sustained to the arm, which were not immediately apparent and worsened over time, there was concern about recovery of the digits and the veterinary staff made the choice to amputate the arm 2 days later. The animal is recovering well and will be re-introduced to its social group in stages. Corrective Action: Whenever a cage is empty, locks will remain in place on the enclosure doors and feeders. Management and staff have reviewed protocols and procedures to ensure that all the steps are taken to check locks and were reminded to check all locks every time they enter or exit an enclosure. Extra locks are available in the ante-room.

# Reported to OLAW and USDA.

• WaNPRC is currently working to improve our incident response and follow up plan. The PC has historically worked hard to establish a strong program of training and responsibility. The plan is to do a more thorough follow up with root cause analysis and incident tracking so that we can identify areas for improvement with on-boarding and continued training and awareness. The PC is working with the Attending Veterinarian and HR colleagues to ensure that processes and procedures put into place are in compliance and respectful of our staff and colleagues.

#### **Other Business**

• Semiannual Program Review - **BE** 

The OAW Assistant Director requests any suggestions and changes to the semiannual program review to be received by July 31<sup>st</sup>. Members will be asked to provide concurrence with signature before the report is sent to the Institutional Official.

#### **Closing Business:**

The Meeting was brought to a close at 3:20 pm. The floor was opened to public comment.